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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Background

Clearfield, Inc. (“Clearfield” or the “Company”jormerly APA Enterprises, Inc., is a Minnesota argiion which was founded in 1979. (
corporate headquarters is located at 5480 Nathame Lislorth, Suite 120, Plymouth, MN 55442 and ourpooate website
www.clearfieldconnection.com. The information aghle on our website is not part of this Report. YYam access, free of charge, our fili
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, inoeéur annual report on Form 10-K, our quartedparts on Form 1@, current repor
on Form 8-K and any other amendments to those tegbrough a link at our website, or at the Consinis's website at www.sec.gov

Description of Business

Clearfield, Inc. manufactures, markets, and seflsead-toend fiber management and enclosure platform thasaaates, distributes a
protects fiber as it moves from the inside planthe outside plant and all the way to the homejrnmss and cell site. The Company
successfully established itself as a vahdeled supplier to its target market of broadbamtice providers, including independent Ic
exchange carriers (telephone), multiple serviceraipes (cable), wireless service providers and wipai-owned utilities. Clearfield h
expanded its product offerings and broadened &ouer base during the last five years.

The Company has historically focused on the uneskor undeiserved rural communities who receive their voiddes and data services fri
independent telephone companies. By aligning #souse engineering and technical knowledge alongsidristomers, the Company has t
able to develop, customize and enhance produats diesign through production. Final build and addgns completed at Clearfielg’plant ir
Plymouth, Minnesota with manufacturing support frarmetwork of domestic and global manufacturingtrgas. Clearfield specializes
producing these products on both a quigis and scheduled delivery basis. The Companyogem hybrid sales model with some sales 1
directly to the customer, some made through ti@pdistribution (channel) partners, and somess#itleough original equipment suppliers \
private label its products.

Products

Clearview Cassette and Clearview xPAK

The Clearview™ Cassette, introduced in November7280d enhanced most recently in September 200%efisas the Clearview xPAI
introduced in February 2010, are the main buildtarks of the Compang’product platform. The value of the building blagproach is th
Clearfield is the only company to provide the neeflsvery leg of the telecommunications networkihwat single building block architectu
reducing the customers’ cost of deployment by radutabor costs associated with training and resyaiaventory carrying costs.

More about the Clearview Casse

The Clearview Cassette, a patented technologysystem of five parts that nest together in theetiss main housing to support a wide ra
of applications. Parts can be added or removeeedau to support the environment in which it islolggd. Within the cassette, all fibers fr
the subassembly are slack stored, bend radius protectédsacured against accidental physical damage framdlimg. A transparent desi
allows the user to see components inside, whilestieptogether components provide access without toalsnfaintenance, cleaning
troubleshooting. All products that integrate a @leaw Cassette product in its design are marketChesarview Multiplied”.




More about the Clearview xPA

Engineered to land small port count fiber termiorasi and optical components, the patented xPAKifgpsl flat and unassembled. Follow
simple pictorial user instructions, a techniciarl wissemble the device to match his field requinetmeat the installation site. To ens
everything needed is at the instaliefingertips, all potentially used components, udahg the splice sleeves, are included within thekaginy
kit. Similar to the concept of a model airplaney amused element is simply disposable. Applicagmiwironments include cell badiaul
business class service delivery, node segmentdtlmar, exhaust scenarios, utility sub-stationsfiber-to-thedesk deployment. All produc
which integrate a Clearview xPAK product in its ig@sare marked as “Clearview Landed”.

Connectivity and Optical Components

The Clearview system consolidates, distributesp@aotects fibers as they move from the inside plarthe home and business. These fiber
either connectorized directly for cable¢able deployment or are connectorized onto optioaiponents that may amplify or divide the sig
they carry. We provide products that meet a custtstable-to-cable deployment or optical compomerds.

Cable-to-Cable Deployment: Fiber Deepclass of fiber assemblies that guarantees pedonce at .2dB insertion loss fdlly half that of the
industry standard. This metric extends the linlslbadget effectively, extending the distance updickvfiber can be deployed. In additi
this 2dB improvement in optical budget reduces poeamsumption by 10%. The power savings, multipligdeven a small thousand hc
network, is a significant contribution to a comntyts “go-green” efforts. The enthce geometries necessary to achieve this kir
performance improve the long-term reliability oétbonnection.

Optical Components: Clearfield packages optical components for siggmlpling, splitting, termination, multiplexing, meltiplexing an
attenuation for a seamless integration within ibtef management platform. This valadded packaging allows the customer to source &
single supplier and reduces space requirementspidducts are built and tested to meet the sttigtelistry standards ensuring custor
trouble-free performance in extreme outside plantrenments.

FieldSmart

Utilizing the Clearview Cassette and XxPAK as buigdblocks, FieldSmart is a series of panels, cabiveall boxes and other enclosures
house the Clearview components to provide a camgistesign from the inside plant of the telco’sritral office” or cable television’s “head-
end”, all the way through the outside plant to the aceeteork and through to the home. At each leg efrtetwork, the FieldSmart platfo
delivers a modular and scalable architecture thatva the service provider to align their capit@ugment expenditures alongside t
subscriber revenues.

Inside Plant: The FieldSmart Fiber Crossover Distribution Sgst@-xDS) provides complete fiber management moduland scalabilit
across the fiber network. Using the Clearview hingdblock approach, each fiber management elementiges modularity of physical fib
protection in the environment in which it is placéthe FxDS is system of modular and scalable mgldblocks that provide for cc
containment configurations with the use of CleamMultiplied products. Easily configured for initialacement and scaling easily from 12-
ports to a full rack of 172erts, the FieldSmart FxDS requires only four ueidliocks to configure initial deployment. The utiegn place
what is needed on the frame as subscriber take dattate.




Outside Plant:The FieldSmart Fiber Scalability Center (FS& )a modular and scalable outside plant cabindt abaws rollout of FTTI
services by communication service providers with@diarge initial expense. Each outside plant catdtares feeder and distribution spli
splitters, connectors and slack cable neatly amdpeatly, utilizing fieldtested designs to maximize bend radius protectionnector acces
ease of cable routing and physical protection,aneminimizing the risk of fiber damage. The FS@durct, with the Clearview cassette a
heart, has been designed to scale with the apiplicabvironment as demand requires and to redug@sdurn-up time for the end-user.

Access NetworlFieldSmart Fiber Delivery Point (FDP) is a seriégmclosure systems that incorporates the deligéfiper connectivity to th
neighborhood or business district in the most edfgetive footprint possible. This family of wathount enclosures provides 12 to 144 por
connectivity for multidwelling unit fiber deployments, fiber demarcati@gcurity systems (CCTV), telecommunications roopeds an
horizontal/intermediate cross-connects.

Access Networ: FieldSmart Small Count Delivery (SCD) is a seiwé&nclosure systems that are packaged to makinasmall count fibe
more cost-effective and efficient than previouslgught possible. This family of wathount enclosures, panels and drop cable caseglpray
to 12 ports of connectivity when fiber managementritical but higheount density is required. The FieldSmart SCD rigated for applicatic
environments such as cell backhaul, business sksgce delivery, node segmentation, fiber exhaust field pedestal, sub-station tuup-o
fiber-to-the-desk deployment.

CraftSmart

CraftSmart, announced in February 2011, is a fiodl bf optical protection field enclosures, exterydClearfield presence in the fiber indus
The CraftSmart Fiber Protection Pedestals (FPP)GuadtSmart Fiber Protection Vaults (FPV) are iméegd solutions, optimized to hol
FieldSmart products at the last mile access pdititeonetwork in above-grade or below-grade inatalhs.

CraftSmart aims to optimize fiber protection andragie while ensuring industry standards. Utilizimgthods of sealing and belayrade
protection, along with Clearfield innovation, C&ftart is a turn-key solution for the deploymenpassive optics from the central office/head-
end to the customer premise.

Markets

FTTP

Fiber to the Premise (also called Fiber to the Hoim@& means of delivering the highest possiblellef bandwidth directly to the user. 1
Companys sales and marketing efforts have principally bieensed on the U.S., and recently has added stdffisfocused on the Caribbe
and other Central and South American markets. HETdn earlystage but rapidly growing market. Render Vandegslicmarket research fi
focusing on this market space, reported in 20111886 of homes in the U.S. have been passed vhign fiith 6% of homes choosing to act
to be connected to the service.

FTTB
Fiber to the Business is the rapid expansion drfikervices, principally by multiple service (call¥) operators to penetrate the busi
marketplace.

FTT-Cell site

Fiber to the Cell-Site is the trend in which wirdeservice providers are fecusing their efforts from building towers for @age to enhanci
their coverage for bandwidth. Fiber is the medfnchoice for their upgrade. Currently a very dnpalrcentage of these cell sites are se
by fiber.




Competition

Competitors to the FieldSmart product lines includet are not limited to, Corning Cabling Systerms;., OFS (Furukawa Electric No
America, Inc.), AFL Telecommunications (a subsigiaf Fujikura Ltd.), Fujikura Ltd., Alcatel, Inc., and TE Connectivity, Inc. (formefyca
Electronics). Competitors to the CraftSmart prodire include Emerson Network Power, a subsididgrnEmerson Electric Co., and Chal
Industries, Ltd. Nearly all of these firms are dabsially larger than Clearfield and as a resullyrba able to procure pricing for neces:
components and labor at much lower prices. Clddrfielieves that it has a competitive advantagé witstomers who can leverage the
savings the Clearview Cassette can provide andethdso require quick-turn, higperformance customized products, and that it
competitive disadvantage with customers who prigltypseek large volume commaodity products.

Sources of Materials and Outsourced Labor

Numerous purchased materials, components, and keoused in the manufacturing of the Com|'s products. Most of these are rea
available from multiple suppliers. However, somenponents and outsourced labor are purchased fraimgde or a limited number
suppliers. The loss of access to some componautoatsourced labor could have an adverse effecunrability to deliver products or
timely basis and on our financial performance.

Major Customers

One customer, Power & Telephone Supply Company éP@nwTel), who serves as a reseller of our prodo@ range of independent teleph
carriers as well as cable service operators, camprapproximately 21% and 20% of total sales ferp@riods ended September 30, 2011
2010, respectively. Power & Tel purchases our pecothrough its standard form of purchase order.

Patents and Trademarks

As of September 30, 2011, we had one patent grameddne pending in the United States and two pgngiatent applications pending ins
and outside the United States. We have also deedland are using trademarks and logos to markktpasmote our products, includi
Clearfield®, Clearview®, FieldSmar® and CraftSmar®-

Backlog

Backlog reflects purchase order commitments for praducts received from customers that have yebetdfulfilled. Backlog orders a
generally shipped within three months. The Comphag a backlog of $3,814,000 and $2,677,000 as pfeSwter 30, 2011 and 20
respectively.

Seasonality

We are affected by the seasonal trends in the iridssve serve. We typically experience sequegtiallver revenues in our first and sec
fiscal year quarters, primarily due to customerdmidcycles, deployment schedules, some customegrgguical concentrations as well
standard vacation and holiday calendars. Reversigsdiy reach a seasonal peak in our third andfidistal year quarters.

Product Development

Product development for Clearfietd’product line program has been conducted intgrn&lle believe that the communication indu
environment is constantly evolving and our sucdegsends on our ability to anticipate and resporttiése changes. Our focus is to analyz
environment and technology and work to develop petslthat simplify our customerbusiness by developing innovative high quality rcie
utilizing modular design wherever possible.




Employees

As of September 30, 2011, the Company had 163ifu#-employees. We also have several paré employees and independent contrac
None of our employees are covered by any colledtargaining agreement. We believe our employesiogls to be gooc

Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single reportable segment

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
The impact and the timing of the impact of the Aniean Recovery and Reinvestment Act on our businassuncertain.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARR&gely known as the “Stimulus Bill,vas enacted in February 2009. The AF
allocates $7.2 billion in grants, loans and loamrgatees for broadband/wireless initiatives foarumserved and underserved geograr
across the country, with these initiatives adméristt by several federal agencies. This funding/élable to a wide variety of organizatio
including our customers and prospective customergurchase and implement network infrastructurd services to improve broadb:
coverage. As part of the criteria established ey fdderal agencies administering these progranespitbjects to be funded through the
federal stimulus plan must be approved by the stagtates in which the projects will be located.

Currently, all funding allocated by the ARRA foretfe broadband/wireless initiatives has been adddat awarded applicants. The recogn
of revenue associated with these projects has slearer than expected due in part to regulatoryydetssociated with documentation as
as the londead times associated with the delivery of fibetiopable. We cannot be assured to what extenfABRIRA will impact demand fc
our products, our results of operations or thergrof purchases by customers.

Long-lead times associated with the production and dety of fiber optic cable.

Broadband service providers deploying fiber netwoake subject to the availability of fiber opticbtea Throughout fiscal year 2011,
world’s supply of fiber optic cable has been limited. [igps, such as Corning Cable Systems, OFS, Suroitomd Prysmian have quoted
customers and prospects average lead time estimfat@sltiple months.

Some of our customers have delayed projects becdukese delays. We cannot be assured that filt@r cable will become more available
the year ahead nor can we be assured that thetaok ample supply of fiber will not impact demaiod our products, our results of opera
or the timing of purchases by customers.

A significant percentage of our sales in the lastd fiscal years have been made to one customer, #irgdloss of this customer wot
adversely affect us.

In fiscal years 2011 and 2010, one distributor @ugtr accounted for 21% and 20% of our revenueetisely. If there is a loss of tl
customer or a significant decline in sales to thistomer, it could have a material adverse effeaiwr results from operations.




Intense competition in our industry may result irripe reductions, lower gross profits and loss of rket share.

Competition in the telecommunications equipment aadvices industry is intense. Our competitors rhaye or could develop or acqt
marketing, financial, development and personnaugses that exceed ours. Our ability to competeessfully will depend on whether we

continue to advance the technology of our prodactd develop new products, the acceptance of outupte among our customers

prospective customers and our ability to anticipatetomer needs in product development, as wethagprice, quality and reliability of o
products, our delivery and service capabilitieg] aar control of operating expenses.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to compeiccessfully against our current or future coitgrst Increased competition fr
manufacturers of telecommunications equipment sgoburs may result in price reductions, lower gpyséit margins, and increased discol
to customers and loss of market share and couldireedncreased spending by us on research and ajgueht, sales and marketing
customer support.

Our results of operations could be adversely affsttby economic conditions and the effects of thesmditions on our customefts
businesses.

Adverse changes in economic conditions, includimgrecent recession in the United States, havétedsand may continue to result in loy
spending among our customers and contribute toedsed sales to our distributors and customershéiyrour business may be adver
affected by factors such as downturns in econowtigity in specific geographic areas or in the ¢telemunications industry; social, political
labor conditions; or adverse changes in the awditialand cost of capital, interest rates, tax sater regulations. These factors are beyoni
control, but may result in further decreases imdjpp® among customers and softening demand fopmducts. Declines in demand for
products will adversely affect our revenue. Furttidrallenging economic conditions also may imphé &bility of our customers to pay
products and services they have purchased. Asu#i,rear cash flow may be negatively impacted andallowance for doubtful accounts
write-offs of accounts receivable may increase.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantirdm quarter to quarter, which may make budgetingrfexpenses difficult and me
negatively affect the market price of our commormesk.

Because many purchases by customers of our prodeiate to a specific customer project, the skemi demand for our products can flucti
significantly and our ability to forecast sales aretely from quarter to quarter is limited. Thisdluation can be further affected by the |
sales cycles necessary to obtain contracts to g@oplipment for these projects, the availabilitycapital to fund our customerptojects, an
the impact of the American Recovery and ReinvestrAehon customer buying patterns. These long sajekes may result in significant eff
expended with no resulting sales or sales thaharenade in the anticipated quarter. Demand forpogjects will also depend upon the ex
to which our customers and prospective custométiatin these projects and the extent to which weesalected to provide our equipmer
these projects, neither of which can be assuregsdFactors generally result in fluctuations, sémes significant, in our operating results.

Other factors that may affect our quarterly opagtiesults including:

« the volume and timing of orders from and shipméatsur customers

« work stoppages and other developments affectingpleeations of our customers;




« the timing of and our ability to obtain new custamentracts and the timing of revenue recognition;
« the timing of new product and service announcemu

« the availability of products and servici

« market acceptance of new and enhanced versiong @iroducts and services;

« Vvariations in the mix of products and services elé&

« the utilization of our production capacity and eayges; and

« the availability and cost of key components of products

Further, we budget our expenses based in part peceions of future revenues. If revenue levels iparticular quarter are lower tt
expected, our operating results will be affectedeasely.

Because of these factors, our quarterly operatisglts are difficult to predict and are likely tary in the future. If our operating results
below financial analysts’ or investors’ expectatipthe market price of our common stock may fatlahly and significantly.

To compete effectively, we must continually impraasdsting products and introduce new products tteathieve market acceptance.

The telecommunications equipment industry is chtaramed by rapid technological changes, evolvindustry standards, changing ma
conditions and frequent new product and servicedhictions and enhancements. The introduction oflyets using new technologies or
adoption of new industry standards can make owsgtiegi products, or products under development, lebsor unmarketable. In order to ren
competitive and increase sales, we will need tacipatte and adapt to these rapidly changing tedgie$, enhance our existing products
introduce new products to address the changing ddsnaf our customers.

Many of our competitors have greater engineering) @roduct development resources than we have. édfihave expect to continue to inv
substantial resources in product development sietlyiour efforts to achieve and maintain profiigbiwill require us to be selective a
focused with our research and development expawmditd-urther, our existing and developmsteige products may become obsolete it
competitors introduce newer or more appealing teldgies. If these technologies are patented orr@tgpy to our competitors, we may not
able to access these technologies.

If we fail to anticipate or respond in a cadfective and timely manner to technological depetents, changes in industry standarc
customer requirements, or if we experience anyifsigmt delays in product development or introdamti our business, operating results
financial condition could be affected adversely.

We may face circumstances in the future that wilksult in impairment charges, including, but not lited to, significant goodwi
impairment charges.

If the fair value of any of our lonlived assets decreases as a result of an econtamidasvn, a downturn in the markets where we saltpct:
and services or a downturn in our financial perfance and/or future outlook, we may be requiredettord an impairment charge on s
assets, including goodwill.




We are required to test intangible assets withfinde life periods for potential impairment annlyabnd on an interim basis if there
indicators of a potential impairment. We also agquired to evaluate amortizable intangible assedsfixed assets for impairment if there
indicators of a possible impairment. One poteritidicator of impairment is the value of our markapitalization compared to our net b
value. Significant declines in our market capitatian could require us to record material goodailtl other impairment charges. Impairn
charges could have a negative impact on our restutiperations and financial position, as well agtee market price of our common stock.

We rely on singlesource suppliers, which could cause delays, ince=sa costs or prevent us from completing custoroeders, all of whict
could materially harm our business.

We assemble our products using materials and coemiersupplied by various subcontractors and sugpl#e purchase critical compone
for our products, including injected molded pamsl @onnectors from third parties, some of whomsémgle- or limitedsource suppliers. If al
of our suppliers are unable to ship critical comgras, we may be unable to manufacture and shipuptedo our distributors or customers
the price of these components increases for argsorear if these suppliers are unable or unwilliogleliver, we may have to find anot
source, which could result in interruptions, ina@@ costs, delays, loss of sales and quality comtoblems.

Further, the costs to obtain certain raw materald supplies are subject to price fluctuations,civhinay be substantial, because of gl
market demands. Many companies utilize the samemnaverials and supplies in the production of tipeoducts as we use in our produ
Companies with more resources than us may havenpetidive advantage in obtaining raw materials andplies due to greater purcha:
power. Some raw materials or supplies may be stibjeegulatory actions, which may affect availablgplies. Furthermore, due to gen
economic conditions in the United States and glgbalur suppliers may experience financial diffibes$, which could result in increas
delays, additional costs, or loss of a supplier.

The termination or interruption of any of theseatiginships, or the failure of these manufacturersuppliers to supply components or
materials to us on a timely basis or in sufficignantities, likely would cause us to be unable &etorders for our products and harm
reputation and our business. Identifying and qu@ald alternative suppliers would take time, invobignificant additional costs and may de
the production of our products. Further, if we abtanew supplier or assemble our product usinglemnative source of supply, we may n
to conduct additional testing of our products tswee the product meets our quality and performateedards. Any delays in delivery of
product to distributors or customers could be edéei and our costs associated with the changeootupt manufacturing could increase.

The failure of our thirdsarty manufacturers to manufacture the productsigoand the failure of our suppliers of componeanid raw materia
to supply us consistent with our requirements agutity, quantity and timeliness could materidigrm our business by causing delays, lo
sales, increases in costs and lower gross profigima

Our success depends upon adequate protection ofgatent and intellectual property rights.

Our future success depends in part upon our piapyigechnology. We attempt to protect our proprigttechnology through pater
trademarks, copyrights and trade secrets. Howehese legal means afford us only limited protectémd may not adequately protect
rights or remedies to gain or keep any advantagemay have over our competitors. Accordingly, warmt predict whether these protect
will be adequate, or whether our competitors wélvellop similar technology independently, withowdlating our proprietary rights.




Our competitors, who may have or could developoguae significant resources, may make substamiastments in competing technolog
or may apply for and obtain patents that will praydimit, or interfere with our ability to manufaee or market our products. Further, althc
we do not believe that any of our products infritige rights of others, third parties may in theufatclaim, our products infringe on their rig
and these third parties may assert infringemeinslagainst us in the future.

We may litigate to enforce patents issued to ustartfend against claimed infringement of the t3ghf others or to determine the owners
scope, or validity of our proprietary rights ana ttights of others. Any claim of infringement agdins could involve significant liabilities
third parties, could require us to seek licensemfthird parties, and could prevent us from manuféng, selling or using our products. ~
occurrence of this litigation, or the effect of ativerse determination in any of this type of litiga, could have a material adverse effect or
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our failure to protect or enforce our intellectpabperty rights could have a material adverse effacour business, results of operations
financial condition.

Further consolidation among our customers may resun the loss of some customers and may reduce mereeduring the pendency
business combinations and related integration adias.

We believe consolidation among our customers infthere will continue in order for them to increaserket share and achieve gre
economies of scale. Consolidation has impactedasiness as our customers focus on completing éssicombinations and integrating t
operations. In connection with this merger and &itjon activity, our customers may postpone orcedrorders for our product based
revised plans for technology or network expansiending consolidation activity. Customers integmgtiargescale acquisitions may a
reduce their purchases of equipment during thgiate®n period, or postpone or cancel orders.

The impact of significant mergers among our custsnen our business is likely to be unclear untinetime after such transactions
completed. After a consolidation occurs, a customay choose to reduce the number of vendors fromhnib purchases equipment and t
choose one of our competitors as its preferred merithere can be no assurance that we will conttousupply equipment to the surviv
communications service provider after a businessbiation is completed.

We are dependent on key personnel.

Our failure to attract and retain skilled personoalild hinder the management of our business, esgarch and development, our sales
marketing efforts, and our manufacturing capaksitiOur future success depends to a significantedegpon the continued services of
senior management personnel, including Cheryl Pamzk, our Chief Executive Officer and John P. Hillr Chief Operating Officer. We he
employment agreements with Ms. Beranek and Mr.tH#t provides that if we terminate the employnwdreither executive without cause ¢
the executive terminates her or his employmengémd reason, we would be required to make spegif@ganents to them as described in 1
employment agreements. We have key person liferanse on Ms. Beranek and Mr. Hill. Further, ourufet success also depends on
continuing ability to attract, retain and motivdtighly qualified managerial, technical and salesspenel. Our inability to retain or attr.
qualified personnel could have a significant negaéffect and thereby materially harm our busirsgssfinancial condition.




Product defects or the failure of our products toeet specifications could cause us to lose custonaard revenue or to incur unexpect
expenses.

If our products do not meet our customesstformance requirements, our customer relatiossiipy suffer. Also, our products may con
defects or fail to meet product specifications. Aajure or poor performance of our products casult in:

« lack of or delayed market acceptance of our prajuct

« delayed product shipmen

« unexpected expenses and diversion of resourceplace defective products or identify and corrketgource of errors;
« damage to our reputation and our customer relatipag

« delayed recognition of sales or reduced sales; and

« product liability claims or other claims for damagbhat may be caused by any product defects oonpesice failures.

Our products are often critical to the performantdelecommunications systems. Many of our supglseaments contain limited warra
provisions. If these contractual limitations areenforceable in a particular jurisdiction or if weeaxposed to product liability claims that
not covered by insurance, a claim could harm ogirtass.

Our stock price has been volatile historically amghy continue to be volatile. The price of our commstock may fluctuate significantly.

The trading price of our common stock has beenraag continue to be subject to wide fluctuationsr €tack price may fluctuate in respo
to a number of events and factors, such as quastarlations in operating results, announcementeainological innovations or new prodt
by us or our competitors, changes in financialnestes and recommendations by securities analpgtyerating and stock price performe
of other companies that investors may deem comfmtatus, and new reports relating to trends inroarkets or general economic conditions.

In addition, the stock market is subject to pricel aolume fluctuations that affect the market psider companies in general, and small-
capitalization, hightechnology companies like us in particular. Thiessad market and industry fluctuations may advgraéfect the price «
our common stock, regardless of our operating pedoce. Further, any failure by us to meet or eddbe expectations of financial analyst
investors is likely to cause a decline in our comrstock price. Further, recent economic conditioarge resulted in significant fluctuations .
significant declines in stock prices for many comipa, including Clearfield. We cannot predict whiba stock markets and the market for
common stock may stabilize.

Future sales of shares of our common stock in thebfic market may negatively affect our stock price.

Future sales of our common stock, or the percepliahthese sales could occur, could have a sigmifinegative effect on the market pric
our common stock. In addition, upon exercise oftautding options, the number of shares outstandiraur common stock could incre:
substantially. This increase, in turn, could dilfiéure earnings per share, if any, and could deptbe market value of our common st
Dilution and potential dilution, the availabilityf @ large amount of shares for sale, and the piliggibf additional issuances and sales of
common stock may negatively affect both the tragirige of our common stock and the liquidity of @ammon stock. These sales also
make it more difficult for us to sell equity sedie$ or equity-related securities in the futura éitne and price that we would deem appropriate.
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Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documentdinnesota law and other agreements could preventelay a change in contr
of our company.

Certain provisions of our articles of incorporatiand bylaws, , Minnesota law and other agreemeratg make it more difficult for a third-
party to acquire, or discourage a third-party frattempting to acquire, control of our company, udthg:

« the provisions of our bylaws regarding the busimsperly brought before shareholders;

« the right of our board of directors to establishrenthan one class or series of shares and todixelative rights and preferences of
such different classes or seri

« the provisions of Minnesota law relating to busg;esmbinations and control share acquisitions;

« the provisions of our stock option plans allowirg the acceleration of vesting or payments of awamnted under the plans in
event of specified events that result in a “chamgeontrol” and provisions of agreements with certain of oueceive officer
requiring payments if their employment is terminbéad there is “change in contrc”

These measures could discourage or prevent a takedws or changes in our management, even ifcguigition or such changes would
beneficial to our shareholders. This may have atig effect on the price of our common stock.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Clearfield leases a 30,000 square foot facility5d480 Nathan Lane North in Plymouth, Minnesota cstitgj of our corporate office
manufacturing and warehouse space. The lease corechem July 1, 2006 with rent commencing on Novanih@006. The lease expires
November 30, 2013. The lease is backed by an uitcamal, irrevocable letter of credit equal to apgmately one mont's rent. On Septemt
1, 2010, the Company entered into a license toaeradditional 7,338 square feet of adjacent warehgpace for the five month period en
February 28, 2011, with an option to extend mootimbnth through to August 31, 2011. This agreemeat replaced with another lice
agreement to rent the same warehouse space amttlgioral 2,223 of adjoining office space for aalodf 9,531 square feet beginning Jul
2011 and continuing month to month with thirty dagsice by either party until November 30, 2013.

We owned a 24,000 square foot production facilityAberdeen, South Dakota, which was partially Idased occupied. In June 2011,

Company completed the sale of the facility and lanthe amount of $725,000. (See Note B in the i Statements included in Item ¢
this Form 10-K.)
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

There are no pending legal proceedings againstvohiing the Company for which the outcome is liked have a material adverse effect u
its financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4. [REMOVED AND RESERVED]
PART I
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Globak&taystem of The Nasdag Stock Market LLC understimbol “CLFD.” The following
table sets forth the quarterly high and low sakéseg for our common stock for each quarter ofigast two fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 201 High Low
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 44z $ 2.8C
Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 6.87 $ 3.44
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 735 % 3.8¢
Quarter ended September 30, 2! $ 83t $ 5.6(
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 201 High Low
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 49C $ 2.01
Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 3.4t % 1.92
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 29t % 2.32
Quarter ended September 30, 2! $ 29t % 2.2¢F

The foregoing prices reflect inter-dealer priceghout dealer markup, markdown, or commissions@aag not represent actual transactions.
Approximate Number of Holders of Common Stock

There were approximately 311 holders of recordusfammmon stock as of September 30, 2011.

Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends on our commasksiWe do not intend in the foreseeable futureay pash dividends on our comn
stock.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table describes shares of our comistock that are available on September 30, 201pdorhase under outstanding stdidse!
awards, or reserved for issuance under staded awards or other rights that may be granteteirfuture, under our equity compensas
plans:

Number of
securities
Number of remaining availab
securities to be  Weighted- for future issuance
issued upon average exercise under equity

exercise of price of compensation pla
outstanding outstanding (excluding those

options, warran options, warrant: reflected in

Plan Categor and rights and rights first column)

Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrgl

2007 Stock Compensation Option P 1,155,32! $ 2.7¢ 1,016,51.
Stock Option Plan for Non Employee Direct 45,000 $ 1.1C -
Total 1,200,32! $ 2.72 1,016,51.

All outstanding equity awards have been grantedyant to shareholder-approved plans.
Issuer Repurchases

We did not purchase any shares of our common stodgkg the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not Requirec
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

Statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10ikhe Company other SEC filings, in press releases and insiedéments, that are |
statements of historical fact are “forward-lookstgtements.” Such forwaldeking statements involve known and unknown riskg;ertaintie
and other factors which may cause the actual esulperformance of the Company to be materialtiedint from the results or performa
expressed or implied by such forward-looking staets. The words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipgte’seeks” and similar expressio
identify forward-looking statements. Readers angioaed not to place undue reliance on these fahhaking statements, which speak onl'
of the date the statement was made. The risks andrtainties that could cause actual results tfedihaterially and adversely from -
forward-looking statements include those risks dbed in Part |, Item 1A. “Risk Factors.”

"o

Overview of Business:The Company sells highly configurable fiber managetrand connectivity products to broadband serprowider:
serving the FTTP, FTTB, FTTell site markets in the U.S. and in certain liditearkets outside the U.S., currently countrieheCaribbeal
Central America and South America. The Compsarsgles channels include direct to customer, thraligtribution (channel) partners, ant
original equipment suppliers who private labelpteducts. The Comparg/’products are sold by its sales employees ancémdient sal
representatives.

Critical Accounting Policies: In preparing our financial statements, we makevests, assumptions and judgments that can hagaificin
impact on our revenues, income or loss from opanatand net income or loss, as well as on the \a@flwertain assets and liabilities on
balance sheet. We believe that there are severauiating policies that are critical to an underdtag of our historical and future performar
as these policies affect the reported amountswefimges, expenses and significant estimates andgws applied by management. While t|
are a number of accounting policies, methods atichates affecting our financial statements, arbasare particularly significant include:

« Stock option accounting;

« Accounting for income taxes; al

» Valuation and evaluating impairment of long-livesbats and goodwill.

Stock-Based Compensation We measure and recognize compensation expensd &ioek-based payments at fair value over the reqt
service period. We use the BlaSicholes option pricing model to determine the failue of stock options award on the date of graht
determination of fair value of share-based paynagvdards on the date of grant using an oppdoing model is affected by our stock price
well as by management assumptions regarding a nuaih@riables. These variables include, but are noitdignto, the expected stock pr
volatility over the term of the awards and the expé life of the award, which is based in part upctual and projected employee stock of
exercise behaviors.

The expected terms of the options and employeéd stochase plan rights are based on evaluatiohsstifrical and expected future emplo
exercise behavior. The rigkee interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasueg & the date of grant with maturity dates apipnately equal t
the expected life at grant date. Volatility is béigm historical and expected future volatility bEtCompanys stock. The Company has
historically issued any dividends and does not exfiein the future. Forfeitures are estimatechattime of the grant and revised, if neces:
in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures difiem estimates. If factors change, we may empldfedint assumptions in the calculatior
compensation expense and the compensation expeoseled for future periods may differ significanfhpm the expense recorded in
current period.
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Income Taxes We account for income taxes in accordance with Anting Standards Codification (“ASC"J40, under which deferr
income taxes are recognized based on the estim#tee tax effects of differences between the foiahstatement and tax bases of asset
liabilities given the provisions of enacted tax faWeferred income tax provisions and benefitsbased on changes to the assets or liab
from year to year. In providing for deferred taxes& consider tax regulations of the jurisdictionswhich we operate, estimates of fu
taxable income, and available tax planning strategif tax regulations, operating results, or thditg to implement taxplanning strategic
vary, adjustments to the carrying value of defeteedassets and liabilities may be required. Aigibn allowance is recorded when it is n
likely than not that a deferred tax asset will hetrealized. The recorded valuation allowanceasell on significant estimates and judgrr
and if the facts and circumstances change the tiatuallowance could materially change.

In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, weognize the financial statement benefit of a tagitpn only after determining that 1
relevant tax authority would more likely than nes&in the position following an audit. For taxsjimns meeting the more likely than
threshold, the amount recognized in the finandiesnents is the largest benefit that has a gréfaaer50 percent likelihood of being reali
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax arith. The Company recognizes interest and pesglticcrued on any unrecognized
benefits as a component of income tax expense.

As of September 30, 2011, the Company had U.Srdéded state net operating loss (NOL) cdomwards of approximately $27,278,000
$22,090,000, respectively, which expire in fiscabgs 2015 through 2028 if not utilized. In fisg&lar 2009, the Company completec
Internal Revenue Code Section 382 analysis of tlse tarry-forwards and determined that all of tleen@any’s loss carrjerwards wer
utilizable and not restricted under Section 382 Tompany has not updated its Section 382 anaybisequent to 2009 and does not be
there have been any events subsequent to 200@dhiéd impact the analysis.

We recorded an income tax benefit of $2,316,00GHeryear ended September 30, 2011, compared ammtax expense of $122,000 for
year ended September 30, 2010. During the fountirtgr of fiscal year 2011, the Company reversg@wréon of its valuation allowance
consideration of all available positive and negatvidence, including our historical operating hesswcurrent financial condition, and poten
future taxable income. The reduction in the vahlratallowance in the fourth quarter of fiscal ye@12 resulted in a nocash income t¢
benefit of approximately $2.5 million.

As part of the process of preparing our financiatesments, we are required to estimate our incaxeidbility in each of the jurisdictions
which we do business. This process involves esitigaur actual current tax expense together wéeasing temporary differences resu
from differing treatment of items for tax and acnting purposes. These differences result in defetax assets and liabilities. We must
assess the likelihood that these deferred taxsasskbe recovered from future taxable income @ndhe extent we believe that recovery is
more likely than not or unknown, we must estabéislaluation allowance.

Our future potential taxable income was evaluataeged primarily on anticipated operating resultsffecal years 2012 through 2014.

determined that projecting operating results bey2ditil involves substantial uncertainty and we disted forecasts beyond 2011as a ba:
support our deferred tax assets. Based upon tlessmaent of all available evidence, the Companysele $2,481,000 of additional valua
allowance for the year ended September 30, 201thmnias recorded as a otiee income tax benefit. As of September 30, 2thg
Company has a remaining valuation allowance of @pprately $6.0 million, of which $1.2 million is skt term and $4.8 million is lonterm
against its remaining deferred tax assets. The @ogwiill continue to assess the assumptions uselétermine the amount of our valuas
allowance and may adjust the valuation allowancéutare periods based on changes in assumptiorstohated future income and ot
factors. If the valuation allowance is reduced, wald record an income tax benefit in the perioel HWaluation allowance is reduced. If
valuation allowance is increased, we would recalditional income tax expense.
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The Company files income tax returns in the U.Qldfal jurisdiction, and various state jurisdictiorgased on its evaluation, the Company
concluded that it has no significant unrecognized lienefits. With limited exceptions, the Compayo longer subject to U.S. federal
state income tax examinations for fiscal yearsmygrior to 1994. In 2007 the Company changetistal year to September 30.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill The Company’s londived assets at September 30, 2011 consisted pepsg plant an
equipment, patents and goodwill. The Company revi¢he carrying amount of its property, plant andipepent and patents if events
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargingunt of the assets may not be recoverable. Whieneview indicates the carrying amc
of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum afititne fundiscounted cash flows expected to be gtehy the assets, the Company recog
an asset impairment charge against operationfiéoamount by which the carrying amount of the imgzhasset exceeds its fair value.

Determining fair values of property, plant and g@aquént and patents using a discounted cash flowadetivolves significant judgment a
requires the Company to make significant estimate assumptions, including logrm projections of cash flows, market conditioms
appropriate discount rates. Judgments are basadtamical experience, current market trends, attagons with external valuation special
and other information. If facts and circumstanckange, the use of different estimates and assungptiould result in a materially differ:
outcome. The Company generally develops these detedased on recent sales data for existing pt&dplanned timing of new prod
launches, and estimated expansion of the FTTP marke

The Company reviews the carrying amount of goodaiilhually in the fourth quarter of each fiscal yaad more frequently if events
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrgimgunt of the assets may not be recoverablehelfcarrying amount of a reporting
exceeds its fair value, the Company measures thsitge goodwill impairment loss based on an aliocabf the estimate of fair value of 1
reporting unit to all of the underlying assets diadilities of the reporting unit, including anyguiously unrecognized intangible assets.
excess of the fair value of a reporting unit oee mounts assigned to its assets and liabiliiebe implied fair value of goodwill. #
impairment loss is recognized to the extent thapmrting unit's recorded goodwill exceeds the iatpfair value of goodwill. This test for t
period ended September 30, 2011 resulted in nogehtmgoodwill from the prior period. An impairntdnss would be based on signific
estimates and judgments and if the facts and cistamges change a potential impairment could hawatarial impact.

No impairment of lon-lived assets or goodwill has occurred during tharg ended September 30, 2011 or 2010, respectively
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Results of Operation

Year ended September 30, 2011 compared to year ewnldseptember 30, 2010

Revenues for the fiscal year 2011 increased 44%3%5193,000 from revenue of $24,367,000 in 201&eRee growth was experienced fi
existing clients as well as from the developmeme@iv accounts. The Company experienced gains fnolepiendent telephone companies
operate within a community or regional locationvasdl as an emerging presence among those carridnsavoroader or national footprint.
addition to its direct sales efforts, the Compadlyieved increasing revenues from a broad rangenefging sales channels, including reve:
derived from distributor arrangements and from gidvabel agreements. These gains were througheutroduct line, with the most signific
increase within optical component technologies. Toeease in revenues described above was duestiergthening economic environm
and in addition the revenues were positively affddiy early stage deployments associated with therfkan Recovery and Reinvestment Act.

As a result of the above factors, revenues in ffigear 2011 to commercial data networks and broadliservice providers were 87% of sale:
$30,633,000, while revenues associated with contremufacturing for original equipment manufactareutside of the telecommunicati
market were 13% of sales, or $4,560,000, for fi€Hl1l. For fiscal year 2010, revenues to commledzita networks and broadband ser
providers were 85% of sales, or $20,645,000, wieleenues associated with contract manufacturingofa@inal equipment manufactur
outside of the telecommunications market were 15%ates, or $3,722,000.

Cost of sales for the fiscal year 2011 was $20(3%, an increase of $5,305,000, or 35% from the Z2PR000 in fiscal year 2010. Gr
margin improved to 41.7% in fiscal year 2011, ampared to 37.5% for fiscal year 2010. Gross piiofiteased 60%, or $5,520,000, fi
$9,138,000 for fiscal year 2010 to $14,658,000fferal year 2011. The year-ovgear gain is the result of enhanced collaboratidth wui
global suppliers resulting in lower purchased padwsts, product mix that favors Clearfield vaadeed features and continual improvem
in our manufacturing processes, which together maselted in greater manufacturing efficiency ahdaaption of factory overhead associi
with the higher production volumes.

Selling, general and administrative expense ine@&6.5%, or $2,928,000, from $8,014,000 for fisezdr 2010 to $10,942,000 for fiscal y
2011. Compensation expenses associated with thievaadhent of revenue and operating income objeciive®ased $1,591,000 in fiscal y
2011 over fiscal year 2010. Sales and marketingesgs increased $1,041,000 in fiscal year 2011fmeal year 2010. This increase was
mainly to additional head count and the associttaeel expenses with those activities, as wellighdr market development expenses. Stock:
based compensation increased $368,000 due mairgxgdense related to new grants of stock optionsotopany employees in the foL
quarter of fiscal year 2011. Offsetting these iases was a decrease in depreciation of $173,00@s6ad year 2011, mainly as a result «
portion of our assets reaching their fully depredives.

Income from operations for fiscal year 2011 was$8,000 compared to $1,123,000 for fiscal year 20Mlfis increase is due to the increas
revenue, improved margins, and controlled expenses.

Interest income in fiscal year 2011 was $110,000mared to $143,000 for the fiscal year 2010. Therefese is a result of declining inte
rates resulting in lower returns on our investmemhtee Company invests its excess cash primarilyDiC-backed bank certificates of dep:
and money market accounts. We expect interestiranay decline as interest rates continue to fall.
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Other income decreased from $36,000 in fiscal 2640 to $25,500 in fiscal year 2011. This is atttéble to rental income for both years fi
our Aberdeen, SD facility which was sold in Jun&2@t which time the rental arrangement ended.

Income tax benefit for fiscal year 2011 was $2,8@6,reflecting recognition of a reversal of a pmntdf the deferred tax asset (DTA) valua
allowance. The reversal of a portion of the DTAuadion allowance was $2,481,000 and was offseakainortization of goodwill of $75,0(
which is deferred, federal alternative minimum &x$67,000, and various state taxes in the amouf4,000. Income tax expense for 2
was $121,000 consisting of tax amortization of geiticbf $87,000, alternative minimum tax of approrately $30,000 and various state te
in the amount of $4,000.

Net income for fiscal year 2011 was $6,167,0005% per share for basic and $0.48 for diluted camexb to $1,181,000 or $0.10 per basic
$0.09 per diluted share for the year 2010. Theemee in net income was primarily due to our inerdastrategic investment of sales
marketing programs, continued product acceptarateditove increased revenue, and the reversal ofteop of the valuation allowance rela
to deferred tax assets.

Liquidity and Capital Resource

As of September 30, 2011, our principal sourcedfitlity was our cash and cash equivalents andt4éon investments. Those sources
$13,130,000 at September 30, 2011, compared tb$D00, at September 30, 2010. Our excess casivésted mainly in certificates
deposit backed by the FDIC and money market acsoimiestments considered lotegm are $2,707,000 at September 30, 2011, compe
$3,236,000 at September 30, 2010. Combined balasfcebortterm cash and investments and long term investntetdas $15,837,000

September 30, 2011 as compared to $10,287,00(Q#tr8ker 30, 2010. We have no loegm debt obligations at September 30, 2011 or
respectively.

Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseal ynded September 30, 2011 totaled $5,297,0@¢h @avided by operations included
income of $6,167,000, which included non-cash egpsrior depreciation of $359,000, and stbeked compensation of $535,000, along
gains on disposals of assets of $44,000, mainbteélto the sale of the Aberdeen, SD facility. igfes in working capital items included
increase in accounts receivable of $16,000 refigcsi lower number of days outstanding due to gaalyment terms with several custom
Inventory increased $1,244,000 due to higher stachévels required to meet increased demand. Adsopayable and accrued expel
increased $1,958,000. Included within this amouet employee compensation accruals increasing by0$100 mainly due to incenti
payments related to fiscal 2011, and an accounyahpa increase of $251,000.

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseat gnded September 30, 2010 totaled $629,000 vildgprimarily due to our net income
$1,181,000, depreciation of $498,000, and stocleda®mpensation of $168,000. This was offset bynarease in accounts receivable
$521,000, an increase in inventory of $358,000aneHuction in accounts payable of $432,000.

Investing Activities

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, we $846,000 in cash for the purchase of equipnieciuded in this amount were purche
for manufacturing equipment in the amount of $3@8,@nd IT equipment and software purchases of $0P0,During the same period
purchased $1,887,000 of FDIC-backed certificateslegosit and sold approximately $2,332,000 of Fb#cked certificates of deposit.
fiscal year 2011 we received proceeds from the sh#ssets in the amount of $719,000. The majarfitthese proceeds were from the sa
the Aberdeen facility which accounted for approxieta $660,000 of the proceeds. The result is anweease in cash from investing activi
of $418,000 in fiscal year 2011 as compared taafigear 2010. The Company intends to continue ¥eshin the necessary and approp
manufacturing equipment to help maintain a comppetiposition in manufacturing capability but has material commitments for capi
expenditures for fiscal year 2012.
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For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, wehpsed $453,000 of manufacturing and IT equipraadtsoftware. During the same pe
we purchased $2,479,000 of FDIC-backed certificafedeposit and sold approximately $2,427,000 ofG-Dacked certificates of deposit.
addition we received proceeds of $435,336 fronpteff of the note from an entity controlled by Addin. The result is a net decrease in
from investing activities of $92,000 in fiscal ye310 as compared to fiscal year 2009.

Financing Activities

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 weivedt $88,000 from employeegsarticipation and purchase of stock through our BEyeE
Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP), $180,000 from therissuaf stock as a result of employees and direexescising stock options and $12,
from excess tax benefits from the exercise of stgations. The net cash received from financingvites was $280,000.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, wd 83,000 to make scheduled debt principal paysnerihcipally associated with t
financing of our IT systems. We received $50,0@0rfthe issuance of stock from the exercise of epg@stock options. The net cash rece
from financing activities totaled $16,000.

The Company has current cash and cash equivaledtsngestments with a maturity of less than oner ybat total $13,130,000 which
believe provides a strong financial position andngl with cash flow from operations will be suffioleto meet its working capital a
investment requirements for the next 12 monthse Tompany intends on utilizing its available casld assets primarily for its contint
organic growth, as well as potential future stretd¢gansactions. However, future growth, organicalt through acquisition, may require
Company to raise capital through additional equitylebt financing. There can be no assurance thyasach financing would be available
commercially acceptable terms.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards lo@ASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASId) 2011-04,Amendments
Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disco&equirements in U.S. GAAP and International Fai@rReporting Standards (Toj
820)—Fair Value Measureme(ASU 201104), to provide a consistent definition of fair waland ensure that the fair value measuremet
disclosure requirements are similar between U.SABANd International Financial Reporting Standa&iSU 201104 changes certain f
value measurement principles and enhances theoslisel requirements for level 3 fair value measurgséas defined in Note 4 to -
Financial Statements below). ASU 20Q4-is effective for us in our first quarter of 82012 and should be applied prospectively. Waa
believe the adoption of ASU 2011-04 will have aenial effect on our financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011®@amprehensive Income (Topic 220)—Presentation ofiffehensive Incoméy require a
entity to present the total of comprehensive incofme components of net income, and the compormdrdther comprehensive income eithe
a single continuous statement of comprehensiveniecor in two separate but consecutive statemer8&l 201105 eliminates the option
present the components of other comprehensive ia@mpart of the statement of equity. ASU 20%1is effective for us in our first quartet
fiscal 2012 and should be applied retrospectiwalg.do not believe ASU 2011-05 will have a materigbact on our financial statements.
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In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011r@8ngibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)—Testtagodwill for Impairmentywhich
is intended to simplify how entities test for godiimpairment by permitting an entity the optiofiperforming a qualitative assessment to
determine whether further impairment testing isassary. The standard will be effective for annual imterim goodwill impairments tests for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011.aWéecurrently evaluating the impact of our pendidgption of ASU 2011-08 on our

financial statements.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly data for the years ended September 30, 20d 2010 was as follows:

Statement of Operations De

Quarter Ende:

December 3. March 31, June 30, September 3
2010 2011 2011 2011

Net revenus $ 7,246,66! $7,119,56- $10,124,66 $ 10,701,63
Gross profi 2,965,95 2,893,73' 4,318,75. 4,479,91!
Net income 501,15¢ 532,48° 1,277,83 3,855,97.
Net income per share, Ba: $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.11 % 0.32
Net income per share, Dilutt 0.04 0.04 0.1C 0.3C

Statement of Operations De

Quarter Ende:

December 3. March 31, June 30, September 3
2009 2010 2010 2010

Net revenus $ 4,942,66 $4,724,76! $ 6,778,19' $ 7,921,122
Gross profi 1,701,70¢ 1,733,371 2,603,19! 3,099,25.
Net income (loss (159,68) (108,37() 629,01: 819,99:
Net income (loss) per share, Ba $ (0.00) $ (0.0 % 0.0t $ 0.07
Net income (loss) per share, Dilut (0.01) (0.01) 0.0t 0.07
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingdrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Clearfield, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance shedf$eaffield, Inc. (a Minnesota corporation) as opteenber 30, 2011 and 2010, and
related statements of earnings, shareholdgrsity and cash flows for the years then endedes@tinancial statements are the responsibil
the Company’s management. Our responsibility sxjoress an opinion on these financial statemexgsdon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighaloUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaiasonable assurance about whether the finasteitdments are free of material mis-
statement. The Company is not required to haveweoe we engaged to perform, an audit of its mdecontrol over financial reporting. C
audit included consideration of internal controko¥inancial reporting as a basis for designingitaptbcedures that are appropriate in
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssin opinion on the effectiveness of the Compsripternal control over financ
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opiniédm audit also includes examining, on a testfasvidence supporting the amounts
disclosures in the financial statements, assegfiagaccounting principles used and significantnestés made by management, as we
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@na We believe that our audits provide a reabthbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Clearfield, Inc. as
September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results apisations and its cash flows for the years thesed in conformity with accounti
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica.

/s/Grant Thornton LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 30, 201
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CLEARFIELD, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

September 3 September 3

2011 2010
Assets
Current Asset
Cash and cash equivalel $ 11,281,02 $ 5,285,71!
Shor-term investment 1,849,001 1,764,86!
Accounts receivable, n 3,228,86- 3,244,37!
Inventories 2,757,15 1,512,301
Deferred taxe 994,00( -
Other current asse 170,24 129,07¢
Total current asse 20,280,28 11,936,35
Property, plant and equipment, | 986,03: 1,273,10
Other Asset:
Long-term investment 2,707,001 3,236,16.
Goodwill 2,570,51. 2,570,51.
Deferred taxe 3,558,79 2,145,36.
Other 199,46° 199,46°
Total other assets 9,035,77! 8,151,50:
Total Assets $ 30,302,09 $ 21,360,96
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payabl $ 143961 $ 1,188,26:
Accrued compensatic 2,465,13 765,18:
Accrued expense 106,38: 82,86
Total current liabilities 4,011,12 2,036,30!
Deferred rent 61,79 78,58¢
Total Liabilities 4,072,92 2,114,89.
Commitment and Contingenci - -
Shareholder Equity
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 500 shares; nes
issued or outstandir - -
Common stock, $ .01 par value; 50,000,000 sk
authorized; 12,270,691 and 12,015,331 shaserd
and outstanding at September 30, 2011 and,2010
respectively 122,70 120,15¢
Additional paic-in capital 53,402,13 52,589,03
Accumulated deficit (27,295,67) (33,463,12)
Total shareholders’ equity 26,229,17 19,246,06
Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity $ 30,302,09 $ 21,360,96

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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Net revenue
Cost of sale:
Gross profit
Operating expenst
Selling, general and administrati
Gain on disposal of asse
Income from operation
Interest incomt
Interest expens
Other income

Income before income tax

Income tax expense (benel
Net income

Net income per share Ba:
Net income per share Dilute

Shares used in calculation of net income per sl

Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinrancial statements.

CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
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Year Ended Year Ended
September 3 September 3

2011 2010

$ 3519253 $ 24,366,75
20,534,17  15,229,22
14,658,35  9,137,53:
10,986,32  8,014,12.
(44,179 -
10,942,14 __ 8,014,12
3,716,200  1,123,41;
109,59! 143,46¢

- (820)

25,50( 36,35
135,09! 179,00
3,851,30.  1,302,41
(2,316,14) 121,45t

$ 616744 $ 118095
$ 0.51 $ 0.1¢
$ 0.4¢ $ 0.0¢

12,085,49 11,992,44

12,749,93 12,449,95




CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stocl Additional  Accumulated Total shareholders’
Shares  Amount paic-in capita deficit equity
Balance at September 30, 20C 11,974,63 $119,74¢ $ 52,372,13 $ (34,644,07)$ 17,847,81
Stocl-based compensation expel - - 167,72¢ - 167,72¢
Exercise of stock optior 40,70( 407 49,17( - 49,571
Net income - - - 1,180,95: 1,180,95.
Balance at September 30, 201 12,015,33 $120,15! $ 52,589,03 $ (33,463,12) $ 19,246,06
Excess tax benefit of stock options exerci - - 12,47¢ - 12,47¢
Stocl-based compensation expel 3,42( 34 535,31: - 535,34
Employee stock purchase pl 32,22¢ 322 87,34¢ - 87,661
Exercise of stock optior 219,71: 2,19¢ 177,96¢ - 180,16¢
Net income - - - 6,167,441 6,167,441
Balance at September 30, 201 12,270,69 $122,70° $ 53,402,13 $ (27,295,67) $ 26,229,17

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash
provided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Gain on sale of asse
Stoclk-based compensation expel
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Other current asse
Accounts payable and accrued expet

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equiprmr
Purchase of investmer
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn
Patent addition
Sale of investmen
Proceeds from notes receiva

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie
Payment of lon-term deb
Proceeds from issuance of common stock u
employee stock purchase p
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock opti
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Increase in cash and cash equivals
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest
Income Taxe!

CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended Year ended
September 3C  September 3(
2011 2010
$ 6,167,441 $ 1,180,95:
358,50: 498,01+
(2,407,43) 86,62¢
(44,179 -
535,34 167,72¢
15,51¢ (520,96%)
(1,244,84) (358,449
(41,169 8,40¢
1,958,02! (432,97))
5,297,21! 629,34!
(745,79() (452,67%)
(1,886,65) (2,479,46)
718,53 1,04¢
- (23,099
2,331,609 2,427,00!
- 435,33¢
417,77¢ (91,857
- (33,08
87,66 -
180,16¢ 49,577
12,47¢ -
280,31: 16,49¢
5,995,30:! 553,98
5,285,71! 4,731,73!
$ 11,281,02 $ 5,285,71!
$ -$ 82C
48,26: 26,80:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES

Description of Business: Clearfield, Inc., (the Company) is a manufacturkldroad range of standard and custom passiveectinity
products to customers throughout the United Stafé®se products include fiber distribution systeompical components, Outside Plant (C
cabinets, and fiber and copper cable assembli¢sséimae the communication service provider, inalgdiiber-to-thePremises (FTTP), lar
enterprise, and original equipment manufactureisM©) markets.

Revenue Recognition:Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, the product has been deliyéhe fee i
fixed, acceptance by the customer is reasonablineand collection is probable. This generallws upon shipment of product to
customer, but in some cases occurs when the praslygtked up by a customsrcarrier. The Company records freight revenudediic
customers as revenue and the related shipping amdlihg cost in cost of sales. Taxes collected foustomers and remitted to governme
authorities are presented on a net basis.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers all highly liquid investmentth original maturities of three months or lessbe cas
equivalents. Cash equivalents at September 30, 28d 2010, respectively consist entirely of stenh money market accounts.

The Company maintains cash balances at severailcfalanstitutions, and at times, such balanceseddnsured limits. The Company has
experienced any losses in such accounts and begliei@ not exposed to any significant credit rigk cash. No cash was in foreign finan
institutions as of September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Investments: The Company currently invests its excess cash ik loartificates of deposit (CB) that are fully insured by the Federal Def
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) with a term of not mtinan three years. C®iwith original maturities of more than three manéne reported
held-to-maturity investments and are recorded airtimed cost, which approximates fair value. Theurty dates of our CI¥ at Septemb
30, 2011 are as follows:

Less than one ye $ 1,849,00!
1-3 years 2,707,00!
Total $ 4,556,00!
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Accounts Receivable: Credit is extended based on the evaluation of tomes’s financial condition and collateral is generaliyt nequirec
Accounts that are outstanding longer than the actial payment terms are considered past due.Cbngpany determines its allowance
considering a number of factors, including the tengf time trade receivables are past due, the @owyip previous loss history, the custonser’
current ability to pay its obligation to the Comgaand the condition of the general economy andrtiastry as whole. The Company wr
off accounts receivable when they become uncoliestpayments subsequently received on such rdaeware credited to the allowance
doubtful accounts. The following table illustratedances and activity for fiscal years 2011 antio20

Balance at Charged to Balance

Beginning Cost and at End of

of Period Expense:! Deductions Period
September 30, 201 $ 97,95( $ - $ - $ 97,95(
September 30, 201 91,11( 6,84( - 97,95(

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The financial statements include the following fio&l instruments: cash and cash equivalents, short
term investments, accounts receivable, accounipaynd accrued expenses. All financial instrusiasatrrying values approximate fair
values because of the short-term nature of theuimsnts.

Inventories: Inventories consist of finished goods, raw materaid work in process and are stated at the lofaereyage cost or
market. Inventory is valued using material costisor charges, and allocated factory overhead elseaigd consists of the following:

September 3 September 3

2011 2010
Raw materials $ 2,158,64 $ 1,117,71
Work-in-process 304,79: 198,38:
Finished goods 293,71. 196,20

$ 2,757,15.$ 1,512,301

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment are recorded at 8igtificant additions or improvements extendingeds
lives are capitalized, while repairs and mainteeaare charged to expense when incurred. Depretistiprovided in amounts sufficient to
relate the cost of assets to operations over gstimated useful lives. The straight-line methodebreciation is used for financial reporting
purposes and accelerated methods are used foutpages. Estimated useful lives of the assetssafellaws:

Years
Building 20
Equipment 3-7
Leasehold improvemen 7-10 or life of least
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shoftthe remaining term of the lease or estiméfedf the asset.

Property, plant and equipment consist of the foilmpat:

September 3 September 3

2011 2010
Land $ -$ 56,19¢
Building - 1,679,42.
Manufacturing Equipmer 1,188,96! 806,40¢
Office Equipmen 1,853,20! 1,712,39!
Leasehold Improvemen 127,88: 200,25

3,170,05: 4,454,68.
Less accumulated depreciation ¢

amortization 2,184,02; 3,181,57
$ 986,03 $ 1,273,10

Depreciation and amortization expel $ 358,50: $ 498,01

Goodwill: The Company analyzes its goodwill testing for innpeeint annually in the fourth quarter or at an iimeperiod when events occur
circumstances change that would more likely tharreduce the fair value of a reporting unit beldsvdarrying amount.

The Company assesses the valuation or potentiairmpnt of its goodwill annually. We consider ot book value and market capitaliza
when we test for goodwill impairment because weeheansolidated our reporting units in prior yeat® ithe parent company, resulting in
reporting unit. If the carrying amount of a repogtiunit exceeds its fair value, the Company meastire possible goodwill impairment I
based on an allocation of the estimate of fair @adfi the reporting unit to all of the underlyingsas and liabilities of the reporting u
including any previously unrecognized intangibleeds. The excess of the fair value of a reportimig aver the amounts assigned to its a
and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwiAn impairment loss is recognized to the extdrdt a reporting unit's recorded good
exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. Thisttéor the period ended September 30, 2011 resirited change to goodwill from the pr
period.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: The Company assesses potential impairments toritslived assets or asset groups when there is evi
that events occur or changes in circumstancesdtalibat the carrying amount of an asset or aseapgnay not be recovered. An impairr
loss is recognized when the carrying amount oflding-ived asset or asset group is not recoverable andeels its fair value. The carry
amount of a londived asset or asset group is not recoverabledkiteeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flowsoteg to result from tl
use and eventual disposition of the asset or gssap. Any required impairment loss is measurethasamount by which the carrying amc
of a longlived asset or asset group exceeds its fair vahgeisirecorded as a reduction in the carrying valuthe related asset or asset gl
and a charge to operating results. Intangible asgi¢h indefinite lives are tested annually for mmment and in interim periods if certain eve
occur indicating that the carrying value of theaimgible assets may be impaired. No impairment mgdived assets has occurred during ar
the periods presented.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Income Taxes:The Company records income taxes in accordancethathiability method of accounting. Deferred taxae recognized for t
estimated taxes ultimately payable or recoverallgetd on enacted tax law. TB®mpany establishes a valuation allowance to redio
deferred tax assets when it is more likely thanthat a deferred tax asset will not be realizalil@anges in tax rates are reflected in th
provision as they occur.

In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes weognize the financial statement benefit of a tagifmun only after determining that t
relevant tax authority would more likely than noistin the position following an audit. For tax piosis meeting the more likely than |
threshold, the amount recognized in the finandetiesnents is the largest benefit that has a gréader 50 percent likelihood of being reali
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax atith. The Company recognizes interest and persakiecrued on any unrecognized
benefits as a component of income tax expense.

Stock-Based Compensation We measure and recognize compensation expensal feiockbased payments at fair value over the reqt
service period. We use the Black-Scholes optiorimpyi model to determine the weighted average failue of options. Equitypase:
compensation expense is included in selling, gérerd administrative expenses. The determinatioffianfvalue of stocksased payme
awards on the date of grant using an oppadning model is affected by our stock price aslvesl by assumptions regarding a numbe
subjective variables. These variables include,dvatnot limited to, the expected stock price viitgtover the term of the awards, and ac
and projected employee stock option exercise bemavi

The expected terms of the options are based oma@hs of historical and expected future emplogeercise behavior. The ridkee interes
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rates at tleecdi@rant with maturity dates approximately egoahe expected life at grant date. Volatilit
based on historical and expected future volatditghe Companys stock. The Company has not historically issugddividends and does r
expect to in the future. Forfeitures are estimatietthe time of the grant and revised, if necessargubsequent periods if actual forfeitures d
from estimates. The Company uses a forfeitureatl®%.

The weighted average fair value of options gramtedng for the year ended September 30, 2011 ad@ 20e $4.14 and $1.75. If fact

change and we employ different assumptions in #gterthination of the fair value of grants in futgeriods, the related compensation exp
that we record may differ significantly from whaéwave recorded in the current periods.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Net Income Per Share:Basic and diluted net income per share is compbtedlividing net income by the weighted average neimdt
common shares outstanding.

Weighted average common share outstanding forehesyended September 30, 2011 and 2010 were awgoll

Year ended September { 2011 2010
Numerator for basic and diluted net inco $ 6,167,441 $ 1,180,95
Denominator for basic net income per st—

weighted average shar 12,085,49 11,992,44
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 664,44 457,50¢
Denominator for diluted net income per share —

adjusted weighted average she 12,749,93  12,449,95

Employee stock options in the amount of 300,000 %000 for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectileve been excluded from the dilt
net income per common share calculation becauseekercise prices were greater than the markeemf the Compang’ common stock ai
were considered anti-dilutive.

Use of Estimates:The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhia United States
America requires management to make estimates ssudrgtions that affect the reported amounts oftassel liabilities, related revenues
expenses and disclosure about contingent asseti&ahilifies at the date of the financial statensen®ignificant estimates include the defe
tax asset valuation allowance and reserves omeentory and accounts receivables. Actual resnitg differ materially from these estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards rBo@ASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASId) 2011-04,Amendments
Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disco&equirements in U.S. GAAP and International Fai@rReporting Standards (Toj
820)—Fair Value Measureme(ASU 201104), to provide a consistent definition of fair waland ensure that the fair value measuremet
disclosure requirements are similar between U.SAB/ANd International Financial Reporting Standa&iS8U 201104 changes certain f.
value measurement principles and enhances theosliisel requirements for level 3 fair value measurgséas defined in Note 4 to -
Financial Statements below). ASU 2004 -s effective for us in our first quarter of @012 and should be applied prospectively. Waa
believe the adoption of ASU 2011-04 will have a enia effect on our financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011©@amprehensive Income (Topic 220)—Presentation afiffehensive Incoméy require a
entity to present the total of comprehensive incofme components of net income, and the compormdrdther comprehensive income eithe
a single continuous statement of comprehensiveniecor in two separate but consecutive statemer8&l 201105 eliminates the option
present the components of other comprehensive ie@spart of the statement of equity. ASU 20%1lis effective for us in our first quartet
fiscal 2012 and should be applied retrospectiwalg.do not believe ASU 2011-05 will have a materigbact on our financial statements.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011r@8ngibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)—Testiagodwill for Impairmentwhich
is intended to simplify how entities test for goaiwnpairment by permitting an entity the optiarf performing a qualitative assessmer
determine whether further impairment testing isassary. The standard will be effective for annumal enterim goodwill impairments tests
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. ak&e currently evaluating the impact of our pendaupption of ASU 20118 on ou
financial statements.

NOTE B — COMMITMENTS AND FACILITIES

Plymouth Facility: The Company leases office and manufacturingifesilin Plymouth, MN for its ongoing operationhi3 operating lea:
expires November 30, 2013. The Company also leamgsus pieces of office equipmeior the years ended September 30, 2011 and
total rent expense was $384,000 and $337,000 rigplgc At September 30, 2011, the future minimueade payments required ur
operating lease agreements are as follows:

Year ending September . Operating lease
2012 $ 273,97:
2013 281,68(
2014 51,05:
2015 87¢
Total minimum lease payments $ 607,58!

Aberdeen Facility: During the second quarter of fiscal 2011, the Gany received and accepted a purchase offer fdatilgy. In June
2011, the Company completed the sale of the faalid land in the amount of $725,000. The finatpeuls to the Company after transaction
costs were $660,000. We recorded a gain on theof#hese assets of approximately $37,000 in thid fuarter of fiscal 2011.
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NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Board of Directors may, by resolution, estdbfiom the undesignated shares different classeergs of shares and may fix the rele
rights and preferences of shares in any classrimss@ he Company is authorized to issue 500 stadrpeeferred stock and 50,000,000 shart
common stock at $.01 par value. The Company hasswéd any shares of preferred stock.

Stock-Based CompensationThe Company’s stockased compensation plans are administered by thg€usation Committee of the Bo
of Directors, which selects persons to receive devand determines the number of shares subjecidio @vard and the terms, conditic
performance measures and other provisions of tlaedaw

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricilnglehto estimate fair value of stoblased awards with the following weighted ave
assumptions for the years ended September 30:

2011 2010
Expected volatility 81% 67%
Expected life (in years 6 year 5 year
Expected dividend 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rat 1.6% 2.08%
Weighte-average gra-date fair value $ 414 $ 1.7¢F

The Company had two stock option plans which aeslwss an incentive for directors, officers, andeotimployees. The directsrplan wa
terminated in February of 2010 and 67,500 authdrizet unissued shares were removed from the platio@ are generally granted at
market values determined on the date of grant &sting normally occurs over a three to fivgar period. The maximum contractual ter
normally six years. However, options granted tectiors have a one year vesting period and a six g@#ractual term. Shares issued L
exercise of a stock option are new shares as ogpws&easury shares. The employee plan has 1,046bares available for issue a:
September 30, 2011. As of September 30, 2011, 6101Q of total unrecognized compensation expenkgerke to nonvested awards
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedpof approximately 2.08 years. The Company ekt related compensation expe
for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 20%83%,347 and $167,725, respectively. There wer@2@stock options that were exerci
using a cashless method of exercise. The intriveige of options exercised during the year the yealed September 30, 2011 and 2010
$1,237,000 and $55,800, respectively.
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NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY - Continued
Option transactions under these plans during the ¢eded September 30, 2011 and 2010 are summasZetiows:

Number o Weighted averag Weighted
shares exercise price average fair valt

Outstanding at September 30, 2( 999,70( $ 1.0¢
Grantec 233,00( 28t $ 1.7¢
Cancelled or Forfeite (53,500) 1.34
Exercisec (40,700 1.2Z

Outstanding at September 30, 2( 1,138,501 $ 1.4C
Grantec 320,92( 6.2€ $ 4.14
Cancelled or Forfeite (21,939 1.72
Exercisec (237,16)) 1.24

Outstanding at September 30, 2( 1,200,32! $ 2.72

The following table summarizes information concegnoptions exercisable under the Options Plans at:

Weighted averag Weighted averag
Year ende Exercisable remaining contractual lif exercise prict
September 30, 201 525,930 5.33 year: $1.85
September 30, 201 393,349 4.91 year: $1.09

The following table summarizes information concegnoptions currently outstanding at:

Weighted Weighted
average average Aggregate
remaining exercise intrinsic
Year Endec Number outstandin contractual life price value
September 30, 201 1,200,32& 5.39 year: $2.72 $3,267,85¢
September 30, 201 1,138,50C 6.11 year: $1.40 $1,589,44:

Employee Stock Purchase PlanThe Clearfield Corporation 2010 Employee Stock Rase Plan (“Stock Planallows participatin
employees to purchase shares of the Compaoginmon stock at a discount through payroll dedast The Stock Plan is available to
employees subject to certain eligibility requiretseTerms of the Stock Plan provide that particigaemployees may purchase the Company’
common stock on a voluntary after tax basis. Eyg®g may purchase the Compangbmmon stock at a price that is no less thartotler of
85% of the fair market value of one share of comrstmtk at the beginning or end of each stock pweheriod or phase. The Stock Ple
carried out in sixnonth phases, with phases beginning on July 1 andady 1 of each calendar year. For the phasetititd on December .
2010 and June 30, 2011, employees purchased 1&ntl 04,519 shares at a price of $2.13 and $3.44hzee, respectively. As of Septen
30, 2011, the Company has withheld approximately, B0 from employees participating in the phase tlegan on July 1, 2011. After
employee purchase on June 30, 2011, 267,771 shlacesnmon stock were available for future purchaisder the ESPP.
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES

Realization of net operating loss cafoyward and other deferred tax temporary differenaee contingent upon future taxable earnings.
Companys deferred tax asset was reviewed for expecteizattdn by assessing the available positive andatinegy factors surrounding

recoverability. During the fourth quarter of fikgeear 2011, the Company reversed a portion ofdéferred tax asset valuation allowanc
record the valuation allowance at an amount thateeents the amount of deferred tax assets thaelieve are not more likely than not to
realized based upon estimates of future taxablemiec The Company considered all available pasiéind negative evidence, including
historical operating results, current financial dibion, and potential future taxable income. Thduation in the valuation allowance in

fourth quarter resulted in a n@ash income tax benefit of approximately $2.5 wnilli In addition, the company released valuatioovainc
each quarter in an amount in which the tax begefiterated offsets the tax provision realized frobenguarter’s taxable income.

Our future potential taxable income was evaluateged primarily on anticipated operating resultsffecal years 2012 through 2014.

determined that projecting operating results bey20itll involves substantial uncertainty and we disted forecasts beyond 2011 as a ba:
support our deferred teassets. Based upon the assessment of all avadlalolence, the Company released $2,481,000 of adéditivaluatio
allowance for the year ended September 30, 201thmnias recorded as a otiee income tax benefit. As of September 30, 2thg
Company has a remaining valuation allowance of @pprately $6.0 million, of which $1.2 million is skt term and $4.8 million is lonterm
against its remaining deferred tax assets. The @ogwiill continue to assess the assumptions uselétermine the amount of our valuas
allowance and may adjust the valuation allowancéutare periods based on changes in assumptiorstohated future income and ot
factors. If the valuation allowance is reduced, wald record an income tax benefit in the perioel HWaluation allowance is reduced. If
valuation allowance is increased, we would recalditional income tax expense.

Significant components of deferred income tax asaetl liabilities are as follows at:

September 3 September 3

2011 2010
Current deferred income tax assets (liabiliti
Inventories $ 142,64t $ 133,18:
Accrued expenses and reser 148,91: 120,01
Prepaid expense (54,35) (40,697
Net operating loss carry forwards and cre 1,972,001 -
2,209,21. 212,50:
Valuation allowance (1,215,21) (212,509
Net current deferred tax as: $ 994,000 $ -
Long-term deferred income tax assets (liabiliti¢
Intangibles $ 9,74: $ 23,45t
Property and equipment depreciat 71,11 295,49¢
Net operating loss carry forwards and cre 8,639,72! 11,833,66
Stock based compensati 36,421 32,50:
Accrued expenses and reser 22,05¢ 28,67:
Goodwill (393,22) (318,65¢)
8,385,84 11,895,13
Valuation allowanct (4,827,05)  (9,749,77)
Net long-term deferred tax asset $ 3,558,799 $ 2,145,36.
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES - continued

As of September 30, 2011, the Company had U.Srdédet operating loss (NOL) carry forwards of appmately $27.3 million, representi
a $9.1 million deferred tax asset. The U.S. fedasdl operating loss carry forwards will expire 82D through 2028 if not utilized. As
September 30, 2010, the Company had U.S. fedetalpezating loss carry forwards of approximatel) $3which were set to expire in fis
years 2020 to 2028. The Company had a partial tiatuallowance against this deferred tax asset &eptember 30, 201

As of September 30, 2011, the Company had statepestting loss carry forwards of approximately .$2®illion, representing a $1.4 milli
deferred tax asset. The state net operating lasg fmwards will expire in 2013 through 2022 if tnatilized. The Company had a pat
valuation allowance against this deferred tax aaseaif September 30, 2011. As of September 30,,20@0Company had state ragierating
loss carry forwards of approximately $23.0 millimhich were set to expire in fiscal years 2012 t820The Company had a partial valua
allowance against this deferred tax asset as deS8dyer 30, 2011.

The Company completed an Internal Revenue CodéoBe®82 analysis of the loss carry forwards in 2608 determined then that all of
companys loss carry forwards are utilizable and not restd under Section 382. The Company has not updtgeBection 382 analy:
subsequent to 2009 and does not believe therelfereany events subsequent to 2009 that would intipaanalysis.

Deferred tax assets relating to equity compensdtare been reduced to reflect tax deductions irrexof previously recorded tax bent
through the year ended September 30, 2011. Thep@oys NOL carry forwards referenced above at Septer®®e2011 include $580,000
income tax deductions in excess of previously r@edrtax benefits. Although these additional taduibtions are reflected in NOL ca
forwards referenced above, the related tax benéf212,000 will not be recognized until the deduts reduce taxes payable. Accordin
since the tax benefit does not reduce the Companytent taxes payable in 2011, these tax beraftsot reflected in the Comparydeferre
tax assets presented above. The tax benefit ¢ thecess deductions will be reflected as a creditiditional paid-in capital when recognized.
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES - continued

The following is a reconciliation of the federahsttory income tax rate to the consolidated eféectax rate as a percent of pee-income fa
the following periods ended:

September 31 September 3

2011 2010
Federal statutory ra 34% 34%
State income taxe 2% 2%
Permanent difference 5% 5%
Change in valuation allowance (101%) (32%)
Tax rate (60%) 9%

Components of the income tax expense (benefitaarfellows for the periods ended:

September 3 September 3

2011 2010
Current:
Federa $ 67,700 $ 17,097
State 23,59: 15,50¢
91,29: 32,60¢
Deferred:
Federa 1,396,29; 998,16
State 116,28¢ (1,563,64)
1,512,58. (565,48))
Valuation allowanct (3,920,01) 654,33
Income tax expense (benefit) $ (2,316,14) % 121 ,45¢

As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, the currenniectax payable was $49,000 and $17,000 respectively

The Company is required to recognize the finansfatement benefit of a tax position only after deising that the relevant tax autho
would more likely than not sustain the positiondeling an audit. For tax positions meeting the midtely than not threshold, the amou
recognized in the financial statements is the Istrdeenefit that has a greater than 50 percentiliidetl of being realized upon ultim
settlement with the relevant tax authority. The @any applies the interpretation to all tax possidor which the statute of limitatio
remained open. The Company had no liability foreeognized tax benefits. The Company did not reaegany interest or penalties during
years ended September 30, 2011 or 2

The Company is subject to income taxes in the té&eral jurisdiction, and various state jurisdiogo Tax regulations within each jurisdict
are subject to the interpretation of the relatedléavs and regulations and require significant juégt to apply. With few exceptions,
Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, saagk local, income tax examinations by tax authesifor fiscal years ending prior to 19
The Company changed its fiscal year in 2007 to&eper 30.
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NOTE E — CONCENTRATIONS

Suppliers: The Company purchases critical components fopooducts, including injection molded parts androectors from third partie
some of whom are single- or limitesburce suppliers. If any of our suppliers are uadbl ship critical components, we may be unab
manufacture and ship products to our distributorsustomers. If the price of these components aswe for any reason, or if these supplier
unable or unwilling to deliver, we may have to fiadother source, which could result in interrupgioncreased costs, delays, loss of sale
quality control problems.

Customers: One customer, Power & Telephone Supply Company é@Pawmd Tel), who serves as a reseller of our protlu@ range «
independent telephone carriers as well as cablécseoperators, comprised approximately 21% and 20%btal sales for the periods en
September 30, 2011 and September 30, 2010, resglgcti

At September 30, 2011 and 2010, two customers atedufor 24% and 35% of accounts receivable. Gaayectric, Inc., also a resell
accounted for 14% and 13%, and Power and Tel ateddar 10% and 22% of accounts receivable. Gaaghles did not exceed 10% of t
sales for the year ended September 30, 2011 ardl P@ilver & Tel and Graybar purchase our produaiutin a standard form of purch
order.

NOTE F — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company maintains a contributory 401(k) prsfiaring benefit plan covering all employees. Tleenfany matches 100% of the first
and 50% of the next 2% of the participant’s eligibbmpensation that is contributed by the partidipdhe Companyg contributions under tt
plan were $232,244 and $191,977 for the years eSéptember 30, 2011 and September 30, 2010

NOTE G — CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

On June 28, 2007, we sold all of our interest inladian subsidiary to an entity controlled by AKil Jain, our former chief executive offic
on terms deemed by the independent directors faiband reasonable to the Company. The purchase of $500,000 was payable over -
years and was fully secured by pledges of Cledfigic. stock and Dr. J¢s payments under his separation agreement, asagdily
guarantee from Dr. Jain. The note was paid inJufle 23, 2010 in the amount of $400,000. Interesime related to this note in the amoul
$19,474 was recorded in the fiscal year ended Sdpe30, 2010.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANT S ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management carried out an evaluatioder the supervision and with the participatidrthe Companys Chief Executiv
Officer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officdrtbe effectiveness of the design and operatiothefCompanys disclosure controls a
procedures (as such term is defined in Rule I@&) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded) as of September 30, 2011. E

upon that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executdfficer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officesncluded that the Company’
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.
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Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaithtaining an adequate system of internal comivel financial reporting, as such terr
defined in Rule 13d5(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision avith the participation of our management, inchgdiour Chie
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officave conducted an evaluation of the effectivenesswf internal control over financ
reporting based on the framework limernal Control — Integrated Framewotksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiminthe
Treadway Commission. Based on that evaluation, gemant concluded that, as of September 30, 20Xlintarnal control over financi
reporting was effective.

This annual report does not include an attestatmort of the Companyg’ registered public accounting firm regarding in&rcontrol ove
financial reporting. Management’s report was ndijact to attestation by the Compasiyegistered public accounting firm pursuant tesub
the Securities and Exchange Commission that peh@i€Company to provide only management’s repottiimmannual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

No changes in the Compé’s internal control over financial reporting occuriduring the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011t thave materiall
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, the Company’s internal control over financigpborting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORP ORATE GOVERNANCE.

Information required by Item 10 is incorporateddierby reference to Comparsyproxy statement for its 2012 Annual Meeting ca@iholder
(the “2012 Proxy Statement™vhich will be filed with the Securities and ExchanGommission pursuant to Regulation 14A within t29:
after the end of the fiscal year for which thisorps filed.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by Item 11 is incorporaktedlein by reference to the 2012 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICI AL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by Item 12 is incorporaktenlein by reference to the 2012 Proxy Statement.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRAN SACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is incorporaktedlein by reference to the 2012 Proxy Statement.

38



ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by Item 14 is incorporaktedlein by reference to the 2012 Proxy Statement.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHED ULES
(@) Documents filed as part of this reépor
(1) Financial Statements.

The financial statements of Clearfield, Inc. alediherewith under Item 8. “Financial Statementd &upplementary Datadf this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules fardfiyears ended September 30, 2011 and Septemj20 B0
None.
(b) Exhibits.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Incorporated
Number Description by Reference to
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation, of APA Optictic. (n/k/gExhibit 3.1 to Registrars’ Quarterly Report on For
Clearfield, Inc.) dated November 3, 1983 and Aescbf Amendmer10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000
dated December 9, 1983, July 30, 1987, March 2891%eptembe
14, 1994 and August 17, 2000
3.1(a) Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporatiatated August 2§Exhibit 3.1 to Registrand’ Quarterly Report on For
2004 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004
3.2 Bylaws, as amended and restated effective Febraary1999 o|Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant’s Annual Report on For@
Clearfield, Inc. (f/k/a APA Optics, Inc.) KSB for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999
10.1 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors Exhibit 10.3a to Registrarst’ Annual Report on For
10-KSB for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1994
*10.2 Insurance agreement by and between the Registndruil K. Jain  |Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Fat6:
K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1990
*10.3 Form of Agreement regarding Indemnification of Ri@s andExhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Fat6t
Officers with Messrs. Jain, Olsen, Ringstad, Rdflon Wald angK for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002
Zuckerman
10.4 Lease Agreement dated May 31, 2006 between Bagss Reklty, LLJExhibit 10.14 to Registrarg’ Annual Report on For
and Clearfield, Inc. 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.
*10.5 2007 Stock Compensation Plan, as amended Appendix A to the Registrarg’Proxy Statement for t
2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on Fely
24, 2011.
*10.6 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008 by katdieer Exhibit 10.26 to Registrant’s Current Report on 8K
Clearfield, Inc. and Cheryl P. Beranek. dated December 16, 2008
*10.7 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008 by katdieer Exhibit 10.27 to Registrant’s Current Report on 8K

Clearfield, Inc. and John P. Hill.

dated December 16, 2008
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Number Description Incorporated
by Reference to
*10.8 Clearfield, Inc. Code 280G Tax Gross Up Paymenn PdaoptedExhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on F@i
November 18, 2010 dated November 18, 2010.
10.9 Clearfield, Inc. 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Appendix A to the Registrarg’Proxy Statement for t
2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on Fely
25, 2010.
23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP **
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer (principaxecutive officen**
Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of tleh&hge Act
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer (principdinancial officer)**
Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of tleh&nge Act
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Pripeil Financial Office|**

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350

* Indicates a management contract or compensalaryor arrangement.

** |Indicates exhibit filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regidthas duly caused this repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Clearfield, Inc.

Date: November 30, 2011 By /s/ Cheryl P. Beranek

Cheryl P. Berane
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed béipwhe following persons
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.
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Each person whose signature appears below herelsyittbes and appoints Cheryl P. Beranek and D&fgetog and each of them, as his
and lawful attorney-irfact and agent, with full power of substitution,dign on his behalf, individually and in each catyastated below, ¢
amendments to this Form X0-and to file the same, with all exhibits theretadaany other documents in connection therewithh vtfite
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting uaith &torneys-irfact and agents full power and authority to do padform each and eve
act and thing requisite and necessary to be doaedrabout the premises, as fully and to all irtemtd purposes as each might or could
person, hereby ratifying and confirming each aat #aid attorneys-in-fact and agents may lawfutlyod cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Signature: Title Date

[s/ Cheryl P. Berane President, Chief Executive Officer and Dire November 30, 201
Cheryl P. Beranek (principal executive officer )

/s/ Daniel Herzo Chief Financial Officer (principal financial a November 30, 201
Daniel Herzog accounting officer)

/sl Ronald G. Rot Director November 30, 201

Ronald G. Roth

/s/ John G. Reddan Director November 30, 201
John G. Reddan

/s/ Stephen L. Zuckerman M.D. Director November 30, 201
Stephen L. Zuckerman

/s/ Donald R. Haywar Director November 30, 201
Donald R. Hayward

/s/ Charles N. Haysse Director November 30, 201
Charles N. Hayssen
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountinfirm

We have issued our report dated November 30, 20t respect to the financial statements includethe Annual Report of Clearfield, Inc.
Form 10K for the year ended September 30, 2011. We hecebgent to the incorporation by reference of sajbrt in the Registratic
Statements of Clearfield, Inc. on Forms S-8 (File R33-74214, File No. 333-44500, File No. 333-&l4Bile No. 333-44486, File No. 333-
136828, File No. 333-151504, File No. 333-166498 kite No. 333-173793) and on Forms S-3 (File N88-33968, File No. 3333966 an
File No. 333-44104).

[s/Grant Thornton LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 30, 201




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

[, Cheryl P. Beranek, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Clearfield, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facbroit to state a material fz
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteotircumstances under which such statements meagke, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adiner financial information included in this amhweport, fairly represent in
material respects the financial condition, resaft®perations and cash flows of the registrantfasd for, the periods presentet
this annual repor

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifiieestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdetemd procedures |
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtites defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduressused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatreg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, paftdy during the period in which this annual refggrbeing preparec

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@porting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asseraegarding the reliability of financial repogi@nd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atanace with generally accepted accounting princjy

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtidis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contmald procedures, as of the end of the period coveyatiis report based
such evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsainternal control financial reporting that ocd during the registrarst’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrariturth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrg that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s control over financial reportin

The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tegistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’s internal controls over financial reportir

November 30, 201

[s/ Cheryl P. Beranek
Cheryl P. Beranek

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal executive officel




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Daniel Herzog, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Clearfield, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facbroit to state a material fz
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteotircumstances under which such statements meagke, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adiner financial information included in this amhweport, fairly represent in
material respects the financial condition, resaft®perations and cash flows of the registrantfasd for, the periods presentet
this annual repor

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifiieestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdetemd procedures |
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtites defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduressused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatreg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, paftdy during the period in which this annual refggrbeing preparec

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@porting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asseraegarding the reliability of financial repogi@nd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atanace with generally accepted accounting princjy

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtidis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contmald procedures, as of the end of the period coveyatiis report based
such evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsainternal control financial reporting that ocd during the registrarst’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrariturth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrg that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s control over financial reportin

The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tegistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’s internal controls over financial reportir

November 30, 201

[s/ Daniel Herzog

Daniel Herzog

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal financial and accounting office




Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION

The undersigned certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.CO1B4&t:

1. The accompanying Annual Report on Forn-K for the period ended September 30, 2011 fully plies with the requirements
Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchalgteof 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cbodiand results of operations of
Company.

Date: November 30, 201

/s/ Cheryl P. Beranek
Cheryl P. Beranek
Chief Executive Office

/sl Daniel Herzog
Daniel Herzog
Chief Financial Office



